ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE SPECI AL COVM TTEE ON EDUCATI ON
April 20, 2007
8:05 a.m

MEMBERS PRESENT
Senator Gary Stevens, Chair
Senator Charlie Huggins, Vice Chair
Senator Bettye Davis
Senat or Donny O son
MEMBERS ABSENT
Senator Gary W/ ken
COW TTEE CALENDAR
SENATE CONCURRENT RESCOLUTI ON NO. 5
Relating to civics education and a citizens' advisory
force.
HEARD AND HELD
PRESENTATI ON:  FLOYD DRYDEN M DDLE SCHOOL
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SCR 5

SHORT TITLE: CIVICS EDUC/ Cl TI ZENS ADVI SORY TASK FORCE
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) STEVENS

03/ 30/ 07 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
03/ 30/ 07 (S) SED, FIN

04/ 13/ 07 (S) SED AT 8:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
04/ 13/ 07 (S) -~ MEETI NG CANCELED - -

04/ 20/ 07 (S) SED AT 8: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

Carl Rose, executive director
Associ ati on of Al aska School Boards
Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SCR 5

Robert Bassett, representing hinself
Anchor age, AK
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: I n support of SCR 5

SENATE SED COW TTEE -1- April 20,

t ask

2007



Mai da Buckl ey, representing herself
Fai r banks, AK
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: I n support of SCR 5

Rebecca Farrell, teacher
Fl oyd Dryden M ddl e School
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Participated in presentation

Sandi Pahl ke, teacher
Fl oyd Dryden M ddl e School
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Participated in presentation

Eric HII, student

Fl oyd Dryden M ddl e School

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Participated in presentation

Si erra Sanchez, student

Fl oyd Dryden M ddl e School

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Participated in presentation

Robert Nick, student

Napaki ak School

Napaki ak, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Participated in presentation

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
CHAIR GARY STEVENS called the Senate Special Comittee on

Education neeting to order at 8:05:47 AM Present at the call to
order were Senators Huggins, Davis, dson, and Chair Stevens.

SCR _5-CIVICS EDUC/ CI Tl ZENS ADVI SORY TASK FORCE

CARL ROSE, Executive Director for the Association of Al aska
School Boards, said that the resolution addresses the need to
teach civics and service learning in public schools. It's
critically inportant that the l|egislature and citizens exam ne
the civic mssion of the state; other subjects are inportant as
well, but the No Child Left Behind act has been detrinental to
the learning of civic topics. He explained that the resolution
is sinple but will start the conversation about the need to
learn civics. He then outlined different elements of the bill,
and what |evels of school it could apply to. The bill allows for
the governor and speaker to nake several appointnents to an

SENATE SED COW TTEE - 2- April 20, 2007



advi sory task force. The fiscal note is unavoi dable, but outside
funding will be raised and many people will be willing to commt
their tinme and expertise to the board.

8:12: 20 AM

CHAI R STEVENS clarified that the resolution will recognize the
i mportance of civic education and assenble a task force to
exam ne the issue. He asked if the date for the final findings
of the task force would renmain the sane.

MR. ROSE replied that because of session issues, the date m ght
have to be altered.

CHAI R STEVENS said that he was wondering if the task force could
conplete its work by that date.

MR. ROSE said that the group is envisioned to nunber 12 peopl e,
with at |least four neetings. The work should be able to be done
in a short period of tine.

8:14: 29 AM

SENATOR COLSON said there seens to be a lack of civic education
in public schools, and asked if that's what the SCR is
addr essi ng.

MR ROSE related a personal story about the lack of civic
awar eness, and said that people don't pay enough attention to
things outside of work or honme life. Such education is a
responsibility of schools, and everyone needs to be nore aware
of the responsibility such | earning.

8:17: 09 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS rel ated a personal story about civic awareness,
and asked how the results of the SCR woul d be market ed.

8:20: 00 AM

MR. ROSE said that change happens from raising awareness, and an
outreach program would be prepared through the Departnent of
Education and Early Devel opnent and other channels. The report
shouldn’t be done in isolation; everyone can participate and
make a difference.

8:21: 30 AM

SENATE SED COW TTEE - 3- April 20, 2007



CHAI R STEVENS said the commttee would be taking testinony, and
not noving the bill that day.

SENATOR OLSON asked if civic awareness is lower than 30 years
ago; television and radio nust have made a difference in
exposur e.

8:22:31 AM

MR. ROSE pointed to information before the commttee that shows
a serious lag in young peoples' civic awareness.

8:23:31 AM

ROBERT BASSETT, representing hinself, related his work history
and said that Alaska has a unique opportunity to coal esce
different fragnments of its population. Service to others is an
inmportant part of civic awareness, as well as |eadership and
citizenship. Schools are already taxed wth a |lot of
responsi bilities, so conmmunity-based strategies for |earning are
inportant as well. He gave sone exanples of civic education
progranms in Anchorage, and said that the best current practices
in Alaska and other states need to be identified and
di ssen nat ed. The Ofice of Fai t h- Based and Comuni ty
Initiatives should be involved in the task force as well.

He pointed out that that day was National Youth Service Day, and
tal ked about the awards that would be given to local youth in
Anchorage. He said that many people are unfamliar with these
awar ds; community resources are not effectively comunicated. He
menti oned that public school drop-outs are  historically
civically di sengaged.

8:29:17 AM

CHAI R STEVENS t hanked M. Bassett, and clarified that the result
of the legislation will be a task force in which M. Bassett
coul d hopeful ly partici pate.

MAI DA BUCKLEY, representing herself, said that she has a passion
for civic education which plays a vital role in denocracy. She
referenced the Constitution to show that civic education needs
to be orderly and conprehensive; reading, witing, and math are
i nportant but do not prepare students for the decision-nmaking of
an active citizen.

SENATE SED COW TTEE -4- April 20, 2007



8:34: 04 AM

CHAIR STEVENS said that he hopes M. Buckley wll consider
applying for the task force, and requested that she send her
witten testinony to the commttee.

He added that there were several anendnents to be drafted for
the bill.

SENATOR DAVIS commented that there should be an anendnent
regardi ng the nunber of the nenbers of the commttee.

CHAI R STEVENS agr eed.

SENATOR DAVIS said that the task force will have plenty of work
to do.

CHAI R STEVENS called a brief at-ease.
8:36: 15 AM

PRESENTATI ON:  FLOYD DRYDEN M DDLE SCHOCL

8:36: 37 AM

CHAI R STEVENS asked the students from Floyd Dryden M ddl e Schoo
(FDVB) to cone forward for their presentation

REBECCA FARRELL, teacher at FDMS, introduced herself.

SANDI PAHLKE, teacher at FDMS, introduced herself.

M5. FARRELL thanked the conmttee for hearing the students from
the school, and said that the exchange program they would be
presenting is student-| ed.

8:37:45 AM

ERIC HILL, student at FDVS, introduced hinself and his fellow
participants in the exchange program with Napaki ak School. The
program was designed to |learn about the areas of governance,
health care, subsistence, transportation, education.

8:38: 50 AM

S| ERRA SANCHEZ, student at FDMS, introduced nore students who
participated in the program

SENATE SED COW TTEE - 5- April 20, 2007



8:40: 30 AM

M5. PAHLKE explained that the program was run by the Al aska
Humanities Forum and said that the conmttee would be seeing a
video created by the youth involved in the program

8:48: 55 AM
MS. PAHLKE i ntroduced additi onal teachers.

CHAI R STEVENS said that the rural/urban program is wonderful
and asked the wurban students if they've ever gone to rural
communities before. He said that many urban kids seldom get a
chance to see life in rural Al aska.

SENATOR DAVIS conplinented the presentation and asked how the
vill age of Napaki ak was chosen for participation.

M5. PAHLKE said that the village was chosen through the Rose
Program and said that FDM5S is looking forward to having the
village' s school as a sister school.

8:52: 01 AM

CHAIR DAVIS commented that in Anchorage only high school
students are sent on such programs, and she’ll share information
about the Juneau programw th her district.

8:52:38 AM

SENATOR HUGAE NS asked the rural students about what they'|ll be
doing in the Juneau area.

ROBERT NI CK, a student from Napakiak, said that the students
will go swimmng, play basketball, go bowing, go to the novies,
eat pizza, and go to the nuseum

SENATOR HUGE NS asked what sort of snow machine M. N ck rides.
MR. NICK said that he rides a Ski-Doo.

8:54:22 AM

SENATOR OLSON asked how long the FDMS students stayed in the
vi |l | ages.

SENATE SED COW TTEE - 6- April 20, 2007



M5. SANCHEZ said that they stayed for six days, visiting other
conmunities as well.

CHAI R STEVENS said that the commttee was proud of the program
M5. PAHLKE i ntroduced further students.

There being no further business to cone before the conmttee
Chair Stevens adjourned the neeting at 8:55:54 AM

SENATE SED COW TTEE -7- April 20, 2007



